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PREFACE

A prime function of the State Commission on Quality of Care
for the Mentally Disabled. (Commission) established by Article 45
of the Mental Hygiene Law is "ensuring that the quality of care
provided to the mentally disabled in the State is of a uniforﬁ]y
high standard.”" Any charge réflecting on the quality of care for
the mentally disabled would be of concern to the Commission.

The investigation undertaken in this case was limited to the
specifit charges by the Chief Medical Examiner of Rockland County,
to wit:

(1) "that a large percentage of the deaths we investigated -
from both Letchworth Developmental Center and Rockland Psychiatric
Center were believed to be‘contributed to by tranquilizing and
sedative‘drugs;” and

{(2) "our autopsies have revealed a significiant number of
_cases where patients died from diseaées such as pneﬁmonia, peri-
tonitis due to ulcer perforations, etc." without reported complaints
of usual symptoms because of the alteration of pain perception by

tranquilizing and sedative drugs.1

1. Undated press release by Dr. Frederick T. Zugibe, Chief
Medical Examiner, Rockland County (€ July 20, 1978).
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Such charges emanating from a person in a positioh of public

responsibility, such as a Chief Medical Examiner, are obviously

not to be taken'lightly, particularly if those charges relate to
life and death matters.

This investigafion did not address the broader consideration
of the use of tranquilizing and.sedating‘drugs, their long term
Consequences, adverse reactions, and benefits or.successes in
behavior modification. It was not the purpose of this study to
contribute to the general scientific debate on the use of psycho-
tropic drugs.

‘If the specific allegations of the Chief Medical Examiner of
Rockland County are valid, remedial measures should be undertaken
immediately to ensure the safety and quality of care of the
mentally disabled clients or patients. If the charges are invalid,
refutations should be made public to inform thé residents and
their families who may have been exposed unnecessarily to grief
and anxieties. ' |

The findings contained in this report were arrived at after
an exhaustive investigation which included review of autopsy
reports, case -histories, foxicological studies, microscopic slides,
examination of a key witness under oath, as well as interviews

with numerous authorities in pathology and psychiatry.
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The findings, conclusions and recommendations represent the
unanimous opinions of the Commission and the Mental Hygiene
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SUMMARY OF FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS

Dr. Frederick T. Zugibe, the Chief Medical Examiner of
Rockland County, has charged that certain medication practices in
~ the mental hygiene'system may have contributed to the deaths of 33
patients of Rockland Psvchiatric Center and 35 residents of
Letchworth Village Developmental Center over a nine year periocd.
Untold numbers of patients and residents of these two facilities,
he alleged, may have died as a result of serious medical condi-
tions such as pneumonia and peritonitis of which they did not
‘complain Secause tranquilizing and sedative drués altered their
‘perception of the.pain associated with these conditions.

Despite repeated oral and written requests for information
which would substantiate his public statements, Dr. Zugibe(failed
to identify ;pecific cases where such phenomena were observed,
leaving both the Commission and the general public in the dark as
to the nature and dimension of the alleged probiems relating to
the usage of tranquilizing and sedative drugs. Since his press
releases and interviews failed to identify the scientific basis or
actua1>1aboratory'findings that justifiéd his statements, Dr. Zugibe
was invited to appear before the Commission and Mental Hygiene
Medical ReviewABoard on November 27, 1978.

During his testimony, Dr. Zugibe, who is not a board certi-
fi;d pathologist, could not identify a single named individual
whose death was caused or contributed to by tranquilizing or
sedative drugs (Transcript pp. 11, 86-87, 97). Dr. Zugibe was

similarly unable to 1identify an instance of such medications
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completely masking pain or other usual symptoms of other serious
illnesses such as pneumonia or peritonitis which led to a patient’s
death. Indeed, Dr. Zugibe repeatedly acknowiedged un&er oath that
he did not routinely examine hospital records of cases referred to
his office from Rockland Psychiatric Center and Letchworth Village
Developmental Center, on a case by case basis, to determine if any
drugs at all wére being used by the patient; what types of drugs
were administered, if any; or, what the dosage levels were (Tr.'p. 77).
Tbxicology was done in less than half of thelcases.

Dr. Zugibe admitted that no quantitative analees were done
to determine drug dosage levels in the tissues in cases which were
autopsied by his office {Tr. p. 77). Dr. Zugibe could not demon-
strate a cause and effect rélationship or any other scientifically
valid cbrrelation between the death of any patient and the adminis-
tration of tranquilizing and sedative drugs (Tr. pp. 11, 86-87,
89, 94); he could not produce actual findings in cases reviewed by
his office which indicated that such a relationship did exist;
-and, iﬁ summafy, Dr. Zugibe has failed to supply this Commission
and the Mental Hygiene Medical Review Becard with any evidence in
'support of his highly publicized charges. His only offer in
substantiation of his charges was a compiiation of generalizations
and excerpts from scientific journals on the possible effects of
certain specific drugs coupled with vague allusions to conversations
he has had with other pathologists. These sources of information

do not subhstantiate his sweeping statements, particularly since,



by his own admissioh, he was not aware of whether the drugs cited
in the journals were used by the persons autopsied. However, more
importantly, these actions indicate that Dr. Zugibe'svopinions and
statements to the press were in no way based upon any scientific
study conducted by his office, nor, significantly, were they based
upon studies of individual death cases from Rockland Psychiatric
Center or Letchworth Village Developmental Center.

The Commission and Board conclude that Dr. Zugibe has fﬁiled
to Substantiate his charges and that his public statements have
caused unnecessary anguish to patients and their families. His
statements have reflected unfairly on public employees by the
erroneous and misleading impressions they have left on the public
mind.

There are unguestionably many policies and practices in a
human enterprise as large and complex as the State mental hygiene
system that warrant criticism and carrection. C(riticism and
condemnation must serve as catalysts for constructive aﬁd correc-
tive action. If critical comments, particularly from persons in
public office, are not firmly rooted in a bedrock of fact, they
are merely destructive. They destroy hope. They destroy morale.
They destroy incentive. Unjustified criticism undermines efforts
to maintain motivation in the staff and thus adversely affects the
quality of care provided.

Attempts to eradicate the misleading and damaging impressions
of the medical practices at Rockland Psychiatric Center and

Letchworth Village Developmental Center will inevitably not be



completely effective. Responsible refutations or clarifications
of dramatic qnd sweeping charges are rarely communicated as widely
or as prominently as the original charges.

The weight given to statements emanating from those in posi-
tions of high pﬁblic trust carries its own burden of responsibility.
Public officials must exercise particular caution in their public
statements. They must weigh the effects of their speech upon the
community at large and be ever vigilant that an allegation is not
represented as a fact. Dr. Zugibe has failed to follow these
‘precepts. We believe an examination into his conduct in office by
the appointing authority, the county legislature, is warranted.

~ This ¥eport, while refuting specific allegations, is not
intended to assure the general public that the use of péychotropic
drugs 1is without problems or risks. '~ The rélationship of possible
benefit to risk of dispensing powerful drugs must be constantly
evaluated both in general and for each individual. Research in
that area should continue so that benefits to the patieﬂts and
clients will be maximized as risks are minimized. Public and
private agencies which are entrusted with the care of a mentally
disabled and dependent population have an obligation to provide
safe and high-quality care in the treatment of illnesses as well
as in the promotion of maximum independent functioning, to the
degree possible in the least restrictive environment consistent
with the needs of the patients. The judicious use of medication,
and necessary medical and emergency care, are aspects of that

charge.



INTRODUCTION

On July 16, 1978 and July 17, 1978 the Rockland Journal News

and the New York Times, as well as other pubiications,z reported

that the Reockland County Medical Examiner, Dr. Frederick T. Zugibe,
in interviews, had alleged- that tranquilizing and sedative drugs
had contributed to the deaths of a significant number of mental
patients at Rockland Psychiatric Center and Letchworth Village
Developmental Center. | |

The newspaper interviews followed a study by the Comptroiler's
Office3 which ¢riticized the drug dispensing policies at several
psychiatric institutions and Letchworth Village Developmental
Center, although the Comptroller's report noted that Rockland
Psychié£ric Center had a much smaller percentage of '"deficiency
occurrences" than the other two psychiatric centers reviewed.

Articles published by the New York press received nationwide
attention. On July 20, 1978, Doctor Zugibe issued a clarifying
statement (Appendix I), claiming that of the 110 cases accepted for
autopsy from the Rockland County Psychiatric Center, 33 cases or.

about 30 percent were aspiration deaths. Of the 93 cases accepted

2. Rockland Journal News, July 16, 1878; New York Times, July 17,
- - 1978; New York Post, July 17, 1978; and Albany Times Union,
July 17, 1978, among others. _

3. Administration of Psychotherapeutic Drugs at Creedmoor,
RockIand and Utica, Marcy Psychiatric Centers and Letchworth
Village Developmental Center, New York State Department of
Mental Hygiene, Audit Report AL-5t-22-73, and NY-S5t-6-78,
Office of the State Comptroller, Division of Audits and
Accounts. Reports filed June 16, 1978.




for autopsy from Letchworth Villag¢ Developmental Center, 35 cases
or about 38 pércent were diagnosed by him as aspiration deaths,.
Doctor Zugibe noted that in the non-institutional population where
deaths ére accepted fbr autopsy, aspiration accounts for only
about 2 percent of all aﬁtopsies.

In his statement, aspiration deaths were defined as due to
"sucking into airways, of vomitus, food, or foreign bodies causing
suffocation." According to Doctor Zugibe, "the only common
denominator among the institutional aspiration cases is the fact

that tranquilizing and sedative drugs are used. The conclusion

that these drugs contributed to the deaths in these cases'appears

obvious (emphasis supplied)." He asked: "If these drugs were not

the causative agents responsible for the aspiration into the

airways, then what is? This must not be confused with medication
overdose'" {emphasis supplied).

The press release noted that "the factor of alteration of
pain perception by tranquilizers and sedative drugs must be fully

explored in institutionalized patients since ocur autopsies have

‘revealed a significant number of cases where patients died from
diseases such as pneumcnia, peritonitis due to ulcer perforation,
etc. These cases revealed no reported complaints-of the usual
symptoms associated with these diséases and were either found dead

or discovered in a terminal state" (emphasis supplied).



CHRONOLOGY OF INVESTIGATION

July

July

July

17, 1978: 1In a joint statement, James A. Prevost, Commissioner

‘0f Mental Health, and Thomas A. Coughlin I1I1I, Commissioner of

Mental Retardation and Developmental Disabilities, requested
the Commission to investigate Dr. Zugibe's allegations,
noting that no cases of suspicious drug-related deaths had
been called to the attention of the facility directors or
other appropriate agencieg {(Appendix II).

17, 1978: Counsel to the Commission wrote to Doctor Zugibe
requesting certified copies of reports on death cases to
which the Chief Medical Examiner had alluded. Counsel noted
that pursuant to section 45.09 of the Mental Hygiene Law, the
Commissjon is legally entitled to receive such records and
that all information, records, or data which are confidential
by law would be kept confidential by the Commission.

25:26, 1978: The Commission requested all reports which the
Office of Mental Health and Office of Mental Retardation and
De&elopmental Disabiiities had in their possession relating

to the deaths referred to by Dr. Zugibe.

August 3, 1978: Commission made same request of Medical Examiner's

Office. Dr. Zugibe agreed in phone conversation with Counsel

to turn over the death records of patients without a subpoena.

August 7, 1978: Letter from Commission Counsel to Dr. IZugibe to

confirm Dr. Zugibe's agreement to turn over death records
without a subpoena and to attend meeting on September 11,

1978 of the Mental Hygiene Medical Review Board.



August 8, 1978: Director of Letchworth Village Developmental
Center {eported that since 1969, 23 persons died due to food
aspiration, 17 of whom were on tranquiiizers, ali 01 low
dosages, and none on dosages exceeding the guidelines of the
Department's psychotherapeutic drug manual.

August 10, 1978: Commissioner Coughlin submitted materials
requested by the Commission.

August 23, 1978: Commissioner Prevost submitted the materials

| requested by the Commission indicating that of the 1,737
deaths at Rockland Psychiatric Center between January 1, 1970
and May 31, 1978, 21 resulted from aspiration of gaStric
contents and 9 from aspiration pneumonia.

August 25, 1978: Further efforts were made by Commission Counsel
to obtain documentation as agreed to by Rockland County's
Medical Examiner without necessity of subpoena, as well as to
secure agreement for Dr. Zugibe's appearance at a Mental
Hygiene Medical Review anrd meeting.

Augusf 30, 1578: Dr. Zugibe's office called to decline invitation
to Mental Hygiene Medical Review Board meeting stating he
would be vacationing.

September 19, 1978: Because Dr. Zugibe had failed to turn over

-

records as agreed upon, the €ommission issued the first

subpoena duces tecum to Chief Medical Examiner for 46 autopsy
reports as identified by the. two facilities and demanding
records of any other deaths relevant to the Commission

investigation.



September 26, 1978: A subpoena duces tecum was issued to the

Chief Medical Examiner of Rockland County requesting all
documentary evidence in his custody pertaining to the deaths
of‘a list of 46 individuals -- the total number of persons
who had reportedly died at Rockland Psychiatric Center and
Letchworth Village Dévelopmental Center of aspiration of
gastric contents since 1971. The subpoena requested autepsy
and toxicological reports, death certificates, pathological

| findings, etc. The Commission also obtained a court order
issuing a judicial subpoena requestiﬁg original autopsy
slides in 12 of the 46 cases which were listed.

September 28, 1978: State Supreme Court Justice Theodore A. Kelly
signed court order requiring\Dr. Zugibe to produce relevant
records by October 4, 1978 at the Commission’s New York Cit}
Office.

October 2, 1978: Dr. Zugibe issued a press release noting that
neither his office nor the County Attorney's office had
opposed the subpoena, and that for the purpose of assisting
the Mental Hygiene Medical Review Board, he had submitted an
11-page review of psychiatric and medical literature which
included a bibliography of 125 references (Appendix III).
This literature review, accoéﬁing to Dr. Zugibe, fully

supported his previous statements that a large percentage of
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deaths investigated from Letchworth Village Developmental
Center and Rockland Psychiatric Center "may have been con-
tributed to by psychiatric and/or sedative drugs.'

October 4, 1978: Pursuant to judicial subpoena of September 26,
1678, Dr. Zugibe produced 139 microscopic slides pertaining
to 5 individuals and‘42 autopsy reports to this Commission.

November 13, 1978: Invitation extended to Dr. Frederick Zugibe
by Chairman Sundram to attend a special session of the Mental
Hygiene Medical Review Board to be held on November 27, 1978
at the Office of the Governor in New York City. This invi-
tation was accepted. |

November 17, 1978: A supplemental judicial subpoena was signed by
Morton B. Silverman, Justice of the Supreme Court, at the
request of the Commission and the Mental Hygiene Medical
Review Board. The subpoena requests additional original
autopsy slides for 34 cases and, as with the previous subpoenas,
also requested ''any additional ones which are known to the
Rockland County .Medical Examiner as a result of studies by
his office of deaths occurring at the Rockland Psychiatric
Center and Letchworth Village Developmental Center pertaining
to his public statements on a relationship between the admin-
istration of certain medications and the aspiration deaths of
certain patients and the failure to treat such physical

conditions requiring treatment” (Appendix IV).
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November 17, 1978: The additional slides produced were only in
those cases specifically requested by the Commission and were
provided by the Rockland County Medical Egaminer's Office for
evaluation by the Mental Hygiene Medical Review Board?

November 17, 1978: Cases were assigned to expert pathologists
serving on the Mentai Hygiene Medical Review Board for their
personal review of the autopsy reports and examinatidn of
slides where available. Thevroutine practices of the two
facilities in disseminating information regarding deaths to
the Medical Examiner's Office were inquired into by staff
investigators.

November 27, 1978: Dr. Fredé}ick T. Zugibe appeared at the séecial
meeting of the Commission and the Mental Hygiene Medical
Review Board along with Dr. Burton Allyn, Assistant Medical
Examiner, and James Costello,'Medical Investigator, in the
Medical Examiner's Office. Dr. Jesse Bidanset, a consulting
toxicolcogist for the Rockland County Medical Examiner's
Office, arrived for the latter portion of the meeting.

Dr. Zugibe, after being duly sworn, was given the opportunity
to submit an opening statement and then to respond to questions
from the Commissioners and members of the Medical Review

Board. Excerpts from the proceedings are included in the

section on "Findings."



FINDINGS

1. Aspiration Deaths

" A. DR. ZUGIBE HAS FAILED TO IDENTIFY A SINGLE NAMED
INDIVIDUAL WHOSE DEATH WAS CAUSED BY OR CONTRIBUTED TO BY TRANQUI;
LIZING OR SEDATIVE DRUGS. (1) IN MANY OF THE CASES REVIEWED, HIS
FINDING OF DEATH DUE TO ASPIRATfON OF GASTRIC CONTENTS COULD NOT
BE CONFIRMED. (Z]lWHERE EVIDENCE OF ASPIRATION WAS PRESENT, iT
WAS UNCLEAR FROM HIS METHODCLOGY WHETHER ASPIRATION WAS THE
PRIMARY CAUSE OF DEATH OR MERELY A CONCOMITANT PHENOMENON ACCOM-
PANYING DEATH FROM OTHER CAUSES. (3) EVEN IN CASES WHERE ASPIRA-
TION WAS A PRIMARY CAUSE OF DEATH, HIS FAILURE TO ROUTINELY
INQUIRE INTO THE MEDICATION HISTORY OF THE DECEASED AND TO PERFORM
COMPLETE TOXICOLOGICAL ANALYSIS TO DETERMINE THE PRESENCE AND
QUANTITATION OF DRUGS, MAKE IT IMPOSSIBLE TO ESTABLISH A CAUSE AND
EFFECT RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE DEATH AND THE ADMINISTRATION OF
TRANQUILIZING AND SEDATIVE DRUGS.

The Commission's methodology in attempting to verify the
~allegation that a large number of patients at Rockland Psychiatric
Center and Letchworth Village Developmental Center died of aspira-
tion of gastric contents as a result of tranqulizing and sedative
drhgs altering their swallowing and vomiting mechanisms was

described in the affidavit of Dr. Sheldon C. Sommers, Chairman of



the Mental Hygiene Medical Review Board, in support of the motion
for a judicial subpoena requiring the producticn of autopsy slides
(Appendix V):

"By examining autopsy slides of tissue or organs in the upper

or lower respiratory tract, it is possible, using standard,

medically recognized procedures, to determine whether gastro-
intestinal contents or other materials from the stomach,
esophagus or gastrointestinal tract were aspirated into the
upper or lower respiratory tract.

", ..upon the determination of whether a death was due to

aspiration, and with analysis of the specific psychothera-

peutic drugs which were administered to a patient, as deter-
mined by reviewing the medical and clinical records, the

Mental Hygiene Medical Review Board will attempt to determine

the relationship, if any, between the aspirational nature of

the death and the administration of psychotherapeutic drugs
in each of the listed cases."

The so-called "aspiration deaths' fall into two classes.
First, those where the person choked on a piece of food (a bolus),
and second, those where the stomach contents were aspirated into
the respiratory system (Tr. pp. 59-60).

The Mental Hygiene Medical Review Board reviewed the autopsy
reports in the 42 cases for which they were available and the
autopsy slides in 31 cases in which slides were available. The
Board concluded that on review of 42 autopsied cases from the

Rockland County Medical Examiner, in 27 cases, the Rockland
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County Medical Examiner's Office reported finding grossly'recog-
nizable boluses in or obstructing the tracheobronchial tree.
The Beoard stated:

"In 15 other cases no bolus is described. Two of these,
based on history or slide review, did have significant
aspirations of gastric or esophageal contents. On two cases
slides were not available. The other 11 are not indepen-
dently confirmed. Thus in one-third of cases, without a
clinical record of associated eating, and without slide
confirmation, the diagnosis of death due to aspiration rests
on otherwise unconfirmed gross findings."

1. In many of the cases reviewed, Dr. Zugibe's findings

of death due to aspiration of gastric contents could not be

confirmed.

We accept the finding of'aspiration death in the 27 cases in
which the Medical Examiﬁer reports that boluses were observed, as
well as in the two cases where the Board confirmed significant
aspiration of gastric or esophageallcontents upon slide review.

We cannot confirm or refute the finding of aspiration of gastric
cdntents in the remaining 13 cases. The Commission and Board did
not have sufficient information in these cases to make an informed
evaluation or conclusion.

Regarding the Board's inability to confirm aspiration death
iﬁ:fhe remain@ng cases, in his testimony before the Commission and
‘Board, Doctor Zugibe indicated that microscopic slides are virtually

useless in confirming aspiration deaths (Tr. pp. 30, 31, 52).



DOCTOR ZUGIBEL: Xk %

Microscopic examination, I agree, is certainly of paramount
importance if you ar=z dealing with aspiration pneumonia. 1In
cases of aspiration pneumonia, but where the death is sudden,
it's going to contribute nothing, because we have found
through our experiences that the greatest majority of all
cases of aspiration will show nothing microscopically, because
either the formalin, when we cut our sections there, we cut
them at the autopsy table, the formalin or other processing
dissolves out most of the aspirate.

In fact, it can even act as a two-edged sword in this way.

You see gastric aspirate all the way down to the fine radicles,
you do a microscopic, there is none present, and a good

lawyer may be able to utilize that to try to question integrity,
heresay. 1If you say it was aspiration, we don't see it on

the microscopic section, maybe there wasn't anything. 1It's

the gross that is important. :

1 think that any good pathologist worth their salt should be
able to diagnose or have their diagnosis in over 90-some per
cent of the cases from the gross pathology before they even
look at the slides. (Transcript p. 31. See also pp. 30, 52)
When challenged by members of the Medical Review Board, who
strongly criticized the quality of the microscopic slides, on his
assertion that microscopic examination in aspiration cases is
useless, Doctor Zugibe suggested that the Board's inability to
confirm the aspiration of gastric contents, which was allegedly
noted in the gross autopsy, might be due to his office's technique

" in preparing the slides (Tr. pp. 55, 58).

DOCTOR SOMMERS:

Q I would like to comment that having been on on the
Histopathologic Technique Committee of the College of
Patheologists for some years, .the slides that were pro-
vided to us were not of a quality that anyone could

obtain their registry certificates for histopathologic
technique.
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DR. SOMMERS: Dr. Weinberg, may I ask how vou felt about
these slides that you examined?

DR. WEINBERG: Frankly, I thought those slides were
horrendous, really. 1 can't believe you even tried to
diagnose.

DR. ZUGIBE: How old were these slides? Were they ones
we sent out?

DR. SOMMERS: The cases are right here.
DR. ZUGIBE: ©On all of them?

-DR. WEINBERG: The best ones were the ones from Letchworth
Village. Now, the ones that were, I guess, directly from -
your office --

DR. ZUGIBE: And we taught them how to do this staining.

DR. WEINBERG: And since you have written a book on
histochemistry, I think certainly ycu would be dissatisfied
with this caliber of work.

DR. ZUGIBE: I would say at the early days I was very
dissatisfied, but in recent years ]I have been quite satisfied
with then.

* * *

DR. FERRARO: In my review of the slides, I found them
to be of inferior quality. Many of them were extremely small
in size, overstained and so on. Age has nothing to do with
it. 1 have slides forty years of age that are still, in fact
they are better, because we had better stains in those days.

I disagree with you on the concept that vou will wash
out the fluid which is contained within the alveolar spaces
by fixation, because formalin fixes that. If that were true,
then we would never be able to see pulmonary edema or any-
thing else on the slides that I reviewed. On only one was I
able to determine that there was a moderate amount of fluid
within the alveolar spaces. The others were perfectly clear.
They had some minimal, other, minor changes.



DR. ZUGIBE: Then how do you account for the fact that
if we visually see gastric aspirate down into the fine radicles
that when we do fix them they are not there? Then i1t must be
our techniques in preparing them.

But you cannot just down our gross observation of it.

DR. FERRARO: I am not always certain that I can identify
gastric fluid as such that is being aspirated. (Transcript
pp. 52-55. See also p. 58)

2. Even in the cases in which aspiration of gastric

contents could be verified, it was unclear from Dr. Zugibe's

methodology whether the aspiration was the primary cause of

death or merely a concomitant phenomenon accompanying death

from other causes (Tr. pp. 60-71, 87, 8%9}.

DR. ZUGIBE: Yes. You see, another point of interest to
-me is this: What is this semi-liquid material that literally
fills the entire tracheobronchial tree, that wsually smells
17ke vomit, if it isn't gastric aspirate? That doesn't show
up on the microscopic examination. What is it? What can it
be? Maybe I will have to do another study, but any time I
see these--

* 2 %

Dr. Herman raised the question as to why the Medical Examiner
did not consider the possibility of agonal aspiration.
EXAMINATiON BY DR. HERMAN;
Q Why could that not be an agonal aspiration? The indi-
vidual, in the process of dying, emits these fluids because
of the spasm of dying.
A In other words, then, the gastric aspirate--
No, no, he is dying from something else.
But what is the material coming?

Gastric aspirate.

Gastric aspirate, though--

P R .= Y Y o

But not the cause of death.

* & %
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A (Continuing) That is what I am going into. I am
trying to go into this business of so-called agonal aspira-
tion. Now, look at it from this point of view:

As far as gastric aspirate goes, it's extremely rare
that we, in our experience, see it in the lungs. In every
case that we did, particularly after we saw the 1970 study,
every single case was deliberately opened in the way we do in
these particular cases, everyone was deliberately opened to

determine gastric, if the movement of the body -- some of
them we took down cliffs, out of the woods for miles, upside
down by the heels, -- maybe I am exaggerating a little bit --

turned for photography and everything else. Nothing was.
found. ‘

MR. SUNDRAM: But that is different from what Dr. Herman
asked.

DR. ZUGIBE: I realize that. By the same token, as far
as heart attack cases, I am not even convinced that when an
individual who showed aspirate, frequently with a heart
attack, he's had a heart attack. We see a heart attack, an
infarction at autopsy, and we also see what some people call
agonal type of aspirate. If the aspirate was not the cause
of death and not the heart attack, the heart attack is pre-
cipitated, in much the same way as many of the drugs caused
cardiotoxicity.

DR. SOMMERS: Well, Dr. Herman reminds me of when 1 was
not a pathologist and was taught to stay by the bedside of

the dying, persons dying of cancer and miscellaneous diseases.

The last gasp was a vomit, and they certainly didn't die of
that.

Now, Betty [Dr. Elizabeth A. Goessel], is that your
experience? -

DR. GOESSEL: Right.

DR. SOMMERS: 1f you stay with the dying, many of them
vomit as they die.

DR. ZUGIBE: We see that on occasion. It's seen on
occasion. There is no question about that, that you have
that, but I think it's because of the fact, if yvou have to go
into what the causation in that particular person 1is, in
other words, these kids from Letchworth and Rockland State
are evaluated, what was the cause of death that caused the
agonal aspiration?
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MS. SHAPIRO: That 1is the question.

DR.  ZUGIBE: That is what I say in my question. 1{ the
aspiration is not the cause of death, then what is?

MS. SHAPIRO: That is your job.
DR. ZUGIBE: Pardon?
MS. SHAPIRO: That is your job,.

DR. ZUGIBE: Sorry. If that is the only common denomi-
nator in my statement, right from the very, very beginning, I
say that the tranquilizing drugs, in my July 1st statement --

x % %

DR. HERMAN:

Q Didn't you affirm what I said by indicating that
seizures are a very prominent effect in connection with the
treatment of these patients, therefore the seizures are so
prone to occur with these drugs and therefore it is not
reasonable that a considerable number of them have died as =z
result of seizures? I am not commenting on the question
whether the drug is responsible or not responsible, but as to
whether the death is due to seizure or aspiration, and that
the seizure is the cause of death in many of these instances,
and that the aspiration is only concomitant, but not the
basic cause of death. Is that not reasonable?

A I believe it is possible in some cases, yes. But I
believe that the seizure actually caused the aspiration.

Yes, I say it's a concomitant, but the cause of
death actually was the seizure. (Transcript pp. 64-068, 71,
See also pp. 87, 89)

3. We find that Dr. Zugibe did not routinelyv inquire

into the medication history of the deceased and that he did

~

not perform complete toxicological analysis to determine the

presence and concentration of drugs.

MS. SHAPIRC: But you are sure that all of the ones you
speak about did, in fact, have some Kind of medication?
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A No. In fact what [ gave vou was, I went back
through my records to find out how many aspiration deaths ]
had at Rockland State and Letchworth, as compared to the
outside, and I showed vou the comparison, so mavbe some
of those aspiration deaths mav have a specific, you know,
cause, for the aspiration other than drugs, possibly. .
(Emphasis supplied)

Every single case of lung cancer, I am sure, is not due
to cigarette smoking. I don't know, I have no way of knowing.

DR. SOMMERS: But to quote again from the statement that
you said you would agree with, and which is in this article,
"The conclusion that these drugs contributed to the deaths in
these cases appears to be obvious.™

You agreed earlier in the session that that was vour
opinion.

MS. SHAPIRO: The assumption i1s they were all on medication.
DR. ZUGIBE: Pardon me? .

MS. SHAPIRO: The assumption is there had to be drugs
there for them to have had that reaction,

DR. ZUGIBE: I don't know what this statement means to
you. My interpretation of that statement means this, that it
is my opinion, to state it specifically, it is my opinion
that from a statistical point of view in these institutions
is that the drugs may have contributed to their deaths by
.causing the aspiration and so forth, and that is what my
statement was 1in the press and so forth.

Tk ok %

DR. ZUGIBE: ...at no time did I ever indicate anything
about overdose, because to say overdose of drugs I have no
data of overdose of drugs.

I did not do quantitative analyses on these drugs to
find overdoses of drugs and so forth.

X % %
DR. SOMMERS:

Q bid you, case by case, examine the hospital records
and determine what drugs and what doses of drugs were used?



A No. 1 even made my statement regardless of dose.
You see, the point that I was trying to bring up is the need
for, if -you are going to utilize something like these drugs,
which can be very, very dangerous, then proper safeguards
have to be used.

MR. SUNDRAM: Do you identify whether the patients were .
receiving any kind of psvchotropic drugs?

DR. ZUGIBE: Yes.
MR. SUNDRAM: How did you do that?

DR. ZUGIBE: Dr. Allyn, how do we do that? When we are
doing an investigation and they report a death, we get a
history from them and they tell us.

MR. SUNDRAM: Do you get thelr medical records and what
drugs they are on? . '

DR. ZUGIBE: And they £fill out a form. 1In fact, relative
to most of these cases, if they told us the individual was on
Elavil 100 milligrams tid, or something like that, this was
completely satisfactory.

If Dr. Allyn investigates a case, he would be talking to
them on the telephone to send them in for autopsy. They
would give him a little rundown on the background of this
individual, this individual was found dead in bed, or the
individual had such and such, and Dr. Allyn would mayvbe ask
them what medications are they on, and he would put it in his
report, and that's all,

MR. SUNDRAM: Dr. Allyn, who did you speak to?

DR. ALLYN: May I go off the records, sir, since I have
not been sworn in?

MR. SUNDRAM: We can take care of that, if you would
like.

DR. ALLYN: I am an Assjistant Medical Examiner, and when
we have a death that is accepted as a Medical Examiner's
case, we, in all cases, speak to the physician in charge of
the party that died. 1 will be on the phone with them and
with the charge nurse of the institution or of the ward where
he came from and obtain as close a history as I possibly can
over the phone. This would include all drugs that the deceased
had received during the past ninety-six hours, as well as the



length of time, where he had been in the institution, where
he was found, whether he was worked on, resuscitated, CPR and
what have you.

This would go into an Assistant Medical Examiner's
report which would go into the Office of the Chief Medical
Examiner. (Tr. pp. 87-88, 77-80)

As Table A indicates, although 41 of the deceased patients
were receiving medication of some kind, only seven autopsy reports

note the presence of any kind -of medication.

TABLE A

Medication
noted on .
autopsy protocol

Persons on

Medication Yes No
41 7 34

Moreover, of the 41 cases in which patients were receiving
medication, in no case was.a complete toxicoclogical analysis done.
In 17 cases, a limited testing of blood samples for alcchol and

barbiturates was done (Table B).



TABLE B
Tests requested Tissues submitted
General  Alcohol Blood Bile Liver
Total cases Not tested Tested unknown  barbiturates 8lone urine brain, etec.
41 24 17 -0 17 17 0 0]

4. We find that Dr. Zugibe, by his own admission,

failed to establish a cause and effect relationship between

the death of anv person and the administration of tranquilizing

or sedative drugs to that person.

MR. SUNDRAM: 1Is 1t clear from everything that you have
said, 1s it fair for us to conclude that there is not an
identifiable person, that any particular person at Letchworth
or Rockland State whom you are willing to identify and state
that this person died because of these drugs? What you are
really stating is that based on the literature, some of these
people may have died as a result of the administration of the
drugs.

DR. ZUGIBE: As I stated in my paper, I think the
relationship 1s statistical.

MR, SUNDRAM: But there is no individual case?

DR. ZUGIBE: Similar to that of lung cancer and ciga-
rette smoking. If vou do an autopsy on an individual with
lung cancer, we have no test to say that that individual dies
as a result of those four packs he was smoking for twenty
years.

DR. ZUGIBE: How can I definitively take that particular
statement and say because he is on drugs that he definitively
died as a consequence of those drugs? Otherwise it would
have been on my death certificate.
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DR. SOMMERS: I would like to comment about vour repeated
assertion concerning the relationship between smoking and
lung cancer. It is widely accepted that statistics cannot
prove a cause and effect relatiomship, but can only suggest,
by logic. Experiments will demonstrate a cause and effect
relationship, and this has never been achieved for cigarettes
in any model for forty-five years, and I have been in the
- field a long time, so I think it's a poor analogy, because
here you have toxicology and you have toxicologists and,
unlike cigarette smoke or nicotine, radioimmunoassayv is not
available. I think vou can have a blood or tissue level of
most or all of the drugs that are being administered, so it
seems to me, if you look for the evidence and the type of
drug and the dose schedule and the amount in the tissues, you
could reach a scientific conclusion that they were insuffi-
cient to contribute to death, or that they were sufficient to
contribute to death.

To me, toc make an assertion short of a study like that
is irresponsible. (Transcript pp. B6-87, 89-90. See also
pp. 11, 25, 80.) :

5. Under questioning by the Commission and Board,

Dr. Zugibe retreated from his earlier press statements to

state that the causal relationship between aspiration deaths

and psychotropic drugs exists merely on a statistical basis

because drugs were the only common denominator (Tr. pp. 8,

11, 24, 29, 80, 86-87, 88). We find that there is 'a funda-

mental flaw in this reasoning as it depends upon a comparison

of noncomparables--i.e., a general population of a county with

a population of mentally disabled persons who have been found

to require institutionalization.

EXAMINATION BY DR. HERMAN:

-

Q I would like to ask a question.
A Yes.
Q As 1 understood what you have said in the press

release, and also now, you are making a strong issue about
the effect of drugs in connection with deaths, particularly
the aspiration deaths, and as I recall what was said, it was
that the only significant factor in the aspiration deaths 1is
the drug usage.
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Now, I know that in clinical work things are much more
complex than that, and I am asking whether vou considered
these additional features, and that 1s that there were deaths,
even aspiration deaths, and I know, because ] antedate the
use of these tranquilizers, there have been aspiration deaths
“in the mental institutions for the psvchotics, as well as for
retardates, before the use of these drugs, whether vou took
into consideration the fact that many patients of this
variety have pica, eating foods, swallowing them often with-
out the niceties of custom, and that many of them...not only
have an inability to.feed themselves but they can't even move
appropriately, that many psychotics have some symptoms that
are well known, such as negativatism, they hold food in theilr
mouths, frequently expanding into large volumes, before they
swallow it, that it is not correct to say that the only
difference between these deaths, giving an incidence, I
think, of about thirty per cent, as compared to two per cent
in the general population, as if you are comparing two equal
groups, that for research purposes that is a very, very
inaccurate comparison to make, because other very significant
variables have been omitted.

Now, .I am not trying to indicate that drugs are un-
important in this whole situation, and I think we are very
much interested in the effect of drugs on the general physio-
logical status of the individuals. We share your concern,
and we certainly want to have as many safeguards as are
possible for this purpose.

But I think if we do that without a consideration of all
of the other very important areas we will not be seeing very
clearly, and I don't know whether you share this.

A I think your points are very, very well taken. I
think your points are well taken. 'In some of the studies --
and I wish you would read that, because some of the studies --

Q I know most of them, but it's unfortunate that it
came through.

DR. ZUGIBE: But there s a reason for why these statis-
tics show a larger percentage in these institutions as compared
to the outside, accepted on the same basis. There is a
reason for it, and the conly common denominator we could find,
as ] mentioned in my statement, the only common denominator
we could find is this, and when you go back to the literature--

DR. HERMAN: I just listed other common denominators.
How could you find-- ’

DR. ZUGIBE: What other--



DR. HERMAN: You said that that is the only common
denominator, and I listed three or four others.

DR. ZUGIBE: But you listed other possible causes, but
not common denominators.

x % %
DR. WEINBERG: How many of these wore dentures?
DR. ZUGIBE: I don't know.
DR. WEINBERG: I think that would be an important con:
gideg?§ion. Were they ill-fitting dentures? (Tr. p. 82-

I1. Deaths From Causes Other Than Aspiration

Doctor Zugibe stated in his press release: '"the factor of
alteration of pain perception by tranquilizers and sedative Hrugs
must be fully explored in institutional patients since our autopsies
have revealed a significant number of cases where patients died
from diseases such as bronchial pneumonia, peritonitis due to
ulcer perforations, etc. These cases revealed no reporfed complaints
of the usual symptoms associated with those diseases and were |
either found dead or discovered in a terminal state."

The subpoena served on DocCtor Zugibe invited the submission
of any death reports related to the cases in which tranquilizing
and sedative drugs had contributed to deaths by pneumonia or
pefitonitis due to ulcer perforation, etc., as he had alleged.

" Since the Commission was unaware of the identities o} the persons
about whom these statements were made, the subpoena invited the

submission of any cases he deemed relevant, but none were submitted.



WE FIND THAT DOCTOR ZUGIBE HAS FATILED TO SUBSTANTIATE HIS

CHARGE THAT TRANQUILIZINC AND SEDATIVE DRUGS MAY HAVE ALTERED PAIXN
PERCEPTION THUS RESULTING IN DEATHS FROM DISEASES SUCH AS BRONCHIAL
PNEUMONiA, PERITONITIS DUE TO ULCER PERFORATIONS, ETC., WITHOUT
COMPLAINTS OF THE USUAL SYMPTOMS ASSOCTATED WITH THOSE DISEASES.
HE COULD NOT IDENTIFY A SINGLE CASE IN WHICH THIS OCCURRED IN
FACT, NOR ANY CAUSE AND EFFECT RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN A SPECIFIC
DRUG AND SUCH A DEATH.

At the hearing, the following exchange took place:

MR, SUNDRAM: We went through the figures in your
autopsy reports for the nine years you were speaking about
and did not find one in which there was a mention of perfora-
tion of ulcers.

DR. ZUGIBE: You didn't ask for those.
MR. SUNDRAM: Our subpoena said so.

DR. ZUGIBE: I don't think that the final court order
did, 1 think you are -- .

MR. SUNDRAM: Let me read you the subpoena. The relevant
part of it says that we asked for these records relating to
the deaths and the causes thereof, both in the cases listed
below and any additional ones which are deemed relevant by
the Rockland County Medical Examiner pertaining to the death
or the causes thereof for the following individuals, so we
asked you for two things. One is the listing of the names
listed, since you declined to ever identify the cases you are.
speaking about, and second is to leave you the option of
supplying us with any other cases.

DR. ZUGIBE: May I see that statement, where it says
that 1 may have given others, because I called the County
Attorney about that.



MR. SUNDRAM: We will be most anxious to have you
“identify the cases where you feel there is a cause and effect
relationship, because we have been waiting for that since
July, and I assume vou declined simply because you could not
identify a cause and effect.

DR. ZUGIBE: I told vou it's on a statistical basis and
from what the literature said.

MR, SUNDRAM: So you cannot establish a cause and effect
relationship in any specific case, 1s that a fair statement?

.DR. ZUGIBE: 1It's a fair statement, yes. I cannot for
any specific case, ] cannot, no.

MR. SUNDRAM: Do you agree that the subpoena says what 1
just read?

DR. ZUGIBE: Wait a minute. I haven't finished yet.

MR. SUNDRAM: If you would like, we will be happy to
serve you another, more clarified subpoena than that one.

DR. ZUGIBE: Oh, I see, you didn't specifically mention
those particular cases. You said "additional ones which are
deemed relevant by the Rockland County Medical Examiner
pertaining to the deaths and causes thereof for the following
individuals.”

MR. SUNDRAM: 1It's an open invitation. The invitation
still stands.% (Tr. pp. 93-95)

Since the hearing on November 27, 1978, Dr. Zugibe has failed
to identify any case of ulcer perforation or pneumonia of the
type he described 1in his press statements.



CONCLUSTONS

After extemsive investigation (reviews of autopsy r2ports,
case histories, toxicologic studies, microscﬁpic slideé], examl-
nation of the key witness under oath, and interviews with numerous
authorities in pathology and psychiatry, including the Mental
Hygiene Medical Review Board, it is this Commission's conclusion
that:

A. Since Dr. Zugibe was unable to present even one case in -
which the patient's death caused by asphyxiation due to aspiration
of gastric contents was related to the use of tranquilizing or
sedative drugs, he is not in a position to substantiate His charge
that such deaths are so related. His statements were not based on
any scientific studies or observations of deaths at Rockland
Psychiatric Center or Letchworth Village Developmental Center.
Food-related aspiration in a typical mental hygiene facility
afflict those who are on tranguilizers as well as those who are
not, which indjcates that aspiration phenomena are muitifactored
and can depend on causes unrelated completely to drug administration.
Complete toxicological studies were not conducted on any of the 41
decedents whose records Dr. Zugibe furnished, to test for the
presence and levels of tranquilizing and sedative drugs in the
sys%em. Such tests should have been done if Dr. Zugibe wished to
establish a direct or indirect causal rélationship between a drug
and a death.

B. Dr. Zugibe failed to present evidence or documentation to

sustain his charge that persons were dving of peritonitis due to



perforation of ulcers and other severe maladies because tranquil-
izers or sedative drugs had inured them to pain. Despite oral and
written requests, subpoenas and‘a court order, he hdas not identi-
fied a single death attributable to these causes. Dr. Zugibe is
unable to substantiate this charge as well. Moreover, had such
cases been presented, a causal relationship would have had to have
been established between any fatal condition and pain desensitiza-
tion attributed to tranquilizing and sedative drugs. The mortality
rate of the mentally disabled was excessive prior to the intro-
duction of psychotropic drugs, and spch ﬁersoné, particularly the
non-verbal, may experience difficulties in communicating perception
of pain. It should also be noted that for a variety of clinical
reasons,s the psychiatric patient may not report pain. Furthermore,
the lack of consistent procedures for the gathering of information
on the.medication history of patients, coupled with the total
absence of complete toxicological analysis of blood and tissue
specimens to determine the presence and quantitation of drugs,
render the Rockland Medical Examiner inherently unable to draw a
scientifically justified cause and effecf relationship. Moreover,
the Chief Medical Examiner's failure to distinguish between
agpiration of gastric contents as a primary cause of death, or as
an agonal or concomitant phenomenan of the dying process should be

noted.

5. John A. Talbott, M.D. and Louis Linn, M.D., '"Reactions of
Schizophrenics to Life-threatening Disease', Psychiatric

Quarterly, Fall, 1978,




€. The clear import of the sfatements made in both the
reported newspaper.interviews and Dr. Zugibe's press release
appended hereto, that Doctor Zugibe's conclusions were based on
empirical evidence, specifically the autopsies conducted on former
patients at Rockland Psychiatric Center and Letchworth Village
Developmental Center, was erroneous. Dr. Zugibe did not produce
any data from cases at Rockland Psychiatric Center or Letchworth
Village Developmental Center to sustain his statements and character-
>izations of treatment rendered there. His only proffer of authority
on his allegations came during'his appearance and testimony under
oath before the Mental Hygiene Medical Review Board and Commission
and consisted of his reports of pefsonal conversations with other
pathologists and a bibliography of scientific and medical journals.
The Commission considers these inherently inadequate to substan-
tiate the specific allegations that there is a strong causal
relationship between aspiration deaths and other deaths and the
use of.tranquilizing.and sedative drugs at Rockland Psychiatric

Center and Letchworth Village Developmental Center.



RECOMMENDATIONS

A. There should be minimum standards for the performance of
autopsy and toxicological procedures and for reporting the findings.
These standards should be developed with the assistance of appro-
priate professional groups and should alsoc include periodic
professional re;iew. |

B. In cases where an autopsy is performed on a patient at a
State facility by the Office of Coroner or Medical Examiner,
ﬁedical and clinical records of the individual should be obtained,
as indicated, to be considered by the coroner or medical examiner
in the post mortem investigation and in the final Teport.

- C. There should be greater mutuality in sharing information
between State mental»hygiene_facilities and county coroners or
medical examiners. The relevant medical and clinical history of a
case undertaken by a coroner or medical examiner should routinely
and expeditiously be communicated by the facility. Conversely,
the findings of the post mortem study should<be shared forthwith
with fhe facility to allow ameliorative measures to be taken where
appropriate,

Such reports in cases of mental hygiene patient deaths should
also be sent to the Commission on Quality of Care for the Mentally
, Diéabled because of the statutory-responsibility of its Mental
Hygiene Medical Review Board to review all deaths which occur in

State mental hyvgiene facilities (N.Y. Mental Hygiene Law §45.17(a)).



D. On matters of the seriousness of life and death, which
potentially cause severe distress and anxiety to patients, their
families and to those charged with their care and treatment,
public officials should clearly separate and distinguish scientific
fact, allegation and personal opinion.

Additionally, in instances where press reﬁorts inaccurately
disseminate such potentially injurious and distressful informé-
tion, a public official has the responsibility to attempt to
clarify and minimize any potential misimpressions.

E. The Rockland County legislative body is respectfully
advised that this Commission's report, as well as the transcript
of the hearing conducted (copies of which are being forwarded to
the chairman of the legislature), should be carefully studied to
enable the appointing authority to determine whether the Medical
Examiner's Office is being operated in a manner consistent with

the public interest.
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v (DR. ZUGIBE'S PRESS RELEASE) Appendix I

it Is of paramount Importance that the facts concernlng the recent
articles in the press be placed In proper perspective. It Is also
essentlal to note that the orlginal.néws artlcle did not appear as a
result of a press release, but as a consequence of an Informal telephone
conversatlon, which occurred almost a week earller, where, In response
to querles made by a rcporter regarding the levitt report, | Indlcated
that 1t was the oplnion of the Medlcal Examlner's offlce that a large
percentage of the deaths that Qe Investlgated from both the Letchworth
Devclppmental Center and the ROCkland Psychlatric Center were belleved
to be contrlbuted to by traoqullizing and sedative drugs., Héreovcr,
thls Is a problem that exists not only at the Letchworth and Rockland
State facillitles, but is perhaps endemlc to all mental Institutions.

In checkling our files we found that dyring the same flmc period,
110 cases were accepted for autopsy from the Rockland Psychlétrlc Center

and 93 cases from Letchworth Vlllage Developmental Center. Out of the

1}0 cases, 33 cases or about 30% were aspliratlon death; @nd out of the

93 cases, 35 cases of about 38% were asplration deaths. Thls s In

striking contrast to Medical Examlner cases outstde these Instltutlons

which are accepted for autopsy, using thc'samo criterlas, wh;rc

asplratlon deaths account; for only two out of ons hundred cases or about

23, Aspliratlon deaths are due to sucklng Into the alrways, of vomltus, food,
or forelgn bodles causing suffocatlon. The cause of aspiration In the
Instltutional cascs could not be attrlbuted to braln damagc because the
Rockland State facillity had a simllar percentage of asplratlon cases and
none of those cases showed evlidence of braln damage. The only common

denomlnator In the Instlitution cases that was apparent was the use of

tranqulllzling and sedatlve drugs. These agents are known to alter the



normal swallowlng and vomlting nechanlsm. If these drugs were not the

causatlve ayents responsible for the asplration Into the alrways, then

what Is?7 This must be emphaslzed that thls must not be confused with

medicatlon overdose,

Moreover, the factor of alteratlon of paln perceptlion by tranquillzers
and sedatlve drugs, must be fully explored in fnstltutlonallz;d patlents slnce
our autopsles have revealed a slgﬁlficant number of cases where patients
died from dlscases such as pneumonita, peritonitils due to ulcer perferatlons,
etc. These cases revealed no reported complalnts of the usual symptoms

assoclated with these dlseases and were elther found dead or dlscovered In

a termipal state.

These flndings are only presented at this time In answer to the
disparaglng remarks questlioning this offlce's Integrity and responsibliity.

It Is important to note that there should be no medlcal need to report

these findlngs since the effects of tranqulllzers and sedative drugs

as indicated above are well known to medlcal profcsslonafs. partlcularly

psychlatrlsts.

it Is apparent that there are approximately twenty tlmes more

.t

deaths from ésplratlbﬁ;ln autopsy cases from the instltutlions than
from autopsles cases from non-lnstltutlénal unattended deaths and when
the only common denominator among the Instltutional asplration sases
Is the fa;t that tranqullizers and §cd#tlves are used. Thc.concluslén
that these drugs contributed to the deaths In these cases appears obvlous,
The two Rockland County facilitles apparently are not devlating from the
current accepted standard of care and the qucstion, tbareforc, arlses as to
whether the curreni practice of treatﬁng lnstltutlona{ resldents by the

wldespread admintstratlon of‘tranqﬁll!zcrs and sedatlves should be re-

evaluated and more tralned personnel Implemented. 1t ts thls query that

-



this office suggests be pursued by competent and constructive research and

-

Tnvestligation. -
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HEWS C- Appendix II

James A. Prevost, f1.0., Commissioner For further information contact:
Office of Mental Health - : Bob Spoor. Director of Comnunications
{518) 474-5540

Thomas A. Coughlin, ELL, Commissioner )
gffice of Mentzl Retardation & Developmental =-a N

Disabilities

: FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE
o : . Honday. July 17, 1978

-~

JOINT STAT;HENT OF JAHES A PREVCST, M.D.
_ COMMISSTONER OF MENTAL HEALTH, AND THOMAS A. COUGHLIN, III,
COMMISSIONER OF MENTAL RETARDATION AND DEYELOPMENTAL
DISABILITIES, REGARDING ALLEGATIONS OF DRUG-CONNECTED
DEATHS IN RCCKLAND COUNTY FACILITIES
Totally irresponsible statements have been made by the Rockland Ccunty medical
examiner charging that heavy doses of tranquilizers have been a cantributing factor

in numeresus. deaths at Rockland Psychiatric Center and the Letchworth Yillage

Developmental Canter. .
Although a county medical examner is not legally bound to nake autopsy Teports
available to state agencies as a matter ofcourse, he is nonetheless bound by county

law to inform appropriate authorities of any suspicicns of improper practices which

mlght have contributed to death.

Dr. Zugibe has not brought any suspicions regarding drugs as 2 contributing “Factor
1in patients' deaths to the attention of the facility directors or ather appropriate
‘agencwes.

The Offices of Mental Hea]th and Henta'l Retardation and Developmental Disabilities
have requested the -State Conmssmn on the Quality of Care to convene an extraordinary
sessmn of the Henta’l Hygi ene Medical Review Board to investigate aﬂegatwns made
by Dr. Fredertck Zugibe, the Rockland County Hedwca'l Examiner.

As we have done m the past, our two agenmes will seek tkrough the court to
'ob-t.am reports on the autops}es conducted by Or. Zugibe’s office on patients and
res:dents of the two facilities.

These autopsy reports, together with pertﬁnent records from the facilities,

Qiﬂ be made avaﬂalﬂe to the Mental Hygiene Medical Review Board for investigation.

Ina prel im'nary review of deaths at the two facilities, accompHsbed by the
two Ofﬂces it was Zound t_hat durmg the past 18 months eight cases of death involving
Rackland Psych‘natric Center patlents were referred to the Rockland medical examiner's

fﬁce. The review chsc]osed that excess‘ive use of medvcatwn was not 3 cantmbutmg

factor in any of the cases.

. : --more-- /\
:'J
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for hs centinuance.

A similar review of 13 cases referred to the medical examiner from Letchworth
Vﬂhqe since June 1977 showed only two of the deaths were related to asphyxiation
due to aspiration of food or ather substances. In one case, no tranquﬂizersluere

being used by the patient pr{ur to his death while in the second only a very low

dosage was prescribed,

‘Such unsubstantwated and thoughfess allegations by Or. Zugibe cause great
anxiety to patients, fam11)es. and other relatives concerning the guality of care
in state facilities, particuiar1y at 1. time when they are under stress fa dealing
with prob1ems of loved ones.

Further, his charges censtitute an unwarranted attack on the integrity of the
thousand

s of facilities employees who labor to care for those Jess fortunate individuals

suffering from mental illness or mental retardation.

In recent years, the Qffices of Menta] Health and Menta] Retardation and

' Oeveiopmenta] Disabilities have been ingreasingly concerned with the quality of

medical practices in State facilities and particularly with the administration of

nedications to patients and clients.

Sinca 1976, continuing education programs in medications have been required-
for medical staff of psychiatric and devg1opmenta! centers. The first session was

conducted for medical staff at Rockland Psychiatric Center by a prestigious panel

of experts. : i . s

-

A formulary on the use of psychoterageutic drugs was pioneered by the Department

of Mental Hygiene and published in 1977. 1t has gained national attention having been

rnquested for duplication in several other states.. Aﬁ_fac'{‘lities are now required

to abide by the‘se guidelines.

-

Recently, memoranda were 1ssued requiring rev1ew of medication administered

%o pat\gqts aver 3 thres-month oeriod and calling for the informed consent of patients
Another called on medical staff to strictly comply mth the

.or-.nulary 1ssued by the Department. o

Rock] and Psychlatric Center is also the sita of one of the most advanced
computeri zed drug monitormg sys..ams in the wor]d w}nch has become 2 -ﬂod:l for

other states and other cuuntnes. In this system -- wmch hss also been pﬂoted in -

severa] New York City ar-a s..ate deve'lopnu‘nta'l cgnters - a'l'l psychotromc drug orders

e mee e g v~

are 1med1ate1y conputerized and any exception to the usual drug comblnations or.

dosages are 'ﬂagged“ The chnica] burdnn for any ph_ys1c1an 1s great and this systeﬁ
1s welcomed by a1l physicians using It. This system will be funy jmplementad in all i

state facilities for the mentally 11 and mentally ratarded by April 1379, ‘ /[’J/)

--more-~
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In an effort to provide a mechanism to fnvestigate the causes and circumsiznces
surrounding deaths in state facilities, the Department of Menta) Hyagiene a1so pressed
for the establishment of the Hental Hygiene Medical Review-Fane1 as an independent

{nvestigatory body. The panel was created by Governor Carey through execu:ive order

fn 1976.

Both Offﬁces have worked closely with the pan;l Qnd Have provided guidelines
to their medical staff for submission of cases.
I should also be noted that in recent years, because of improved medical practices,
o there has bean.a three-fold decline in the number of deaths in state facilities. This
has occurredvin Spite'of tﬁe fact that approximately 60 percent of the inpatient
population of psYchiatric centersiis §5 or older and many residents of the develapmental
centars are_not any profoundly retarded but suffer severe physical handicaps as well.
The State Offices of Mental Heélth and Mental Retardation and Developmental
Disabilities will continue their efforts to improve care of the mentally disabled
and will listen to any responsible criticism of services offered in conjunction
with that effort.
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} have thls date complied with the Judl;IaI subpoena lssued by the Honorable
Theodore Kelly. Thls subpoena was not opposed by the Medical Examlner's Office
or the County Attorney's Offlce. The reports requested by the Mental Hyglcne
Medical Revlew Board Includes cases In which the autopsles were performed by
either myself, other pathologists from the Medlcal Examiner's Office, and by
pathologists from the two Rockland County in§tltutlons involved. The scope of

the cases requested was, unfortunately, limlted to some of the asplration deaths

and d1d not Include any of the other possible drug related deaths.

For the purpose of assisting the Mental Hyglene Medica) Revlew Board, 1 have

submitted an eleven page exhaustive review of the psychiatric and medlcal

l1terature which 1nclude5 a bibllography of 125 respected and authorltative

references from psychlatric and medlcal Journals. A llst ot recommendatlons,

Whl?h may help to reduce the number of traglc compllications and adverse reactions,
has been incorporated at the end ot the revlew.‘ The psychlatrlc and medical

and repeatedly reveals, a glaringly ostensIble assoclation

-

llterature warns of,

between psychlatric drugs and deaths due to asplration of food and vomltus,

deaths due to toxlc effects on the heart, deaths due to pneumonla and other

drug related deaths. This review fully supports all of my prevlous statements

regarding the oplnton of the Medlcal txaminer's Offlce, that a large percentage

of the deaths Investlgated from both the Letchworth Viilage Developmental Center

Sala



and Rockland Psychtatric Center, may have been contributed to by psychiatric
and/or sedative drugs. Moreover, 1t tully substantlates my statement that

there should be no medical need to rcport these iindlnqs to thc facllity

dlrectors of other agenclies since thc effecls of these drugs have been

sclentlfica]ly established and are well known to medical professionals
3

particularly psychlétrlsts. The relatlonship of asplratlon with psychiatric

drugs is well known In Forenslc Pathology. For example, Dr. W. Spltz
. M. .

Chief Medical Examiper of Detrolt, relates in one of the most prestiglous

creference books of medico-legal Investligatlons ot death, "Food aspiration

following suppression of the gag reflex by-tranqulllzlng drugs Is a common

phenomenon In mental Institutions.'" Moreover, the voluminous catalogue of

other articles In my revliew serves to support my contention.

In conclusion, | wish to emphasize that by profession, | am a researcher,

scientlst and physlclan. Moreover, 1t Is the responslbllity ot the Medlical

Examlner as an independent nwatch dog" of several aspects of the publlc welfare

to report his findlngs as to causatlon so that needléss deaths may be prevented.

I am leavlng for Europe as a member ot the sclentific panel of experts honored

to study the authentlclty of the Shroud of Turln. the cloth belleved to be the

burial shroud of Christ. While | am away, | slincerely hope those who are

entrusted with thls Investligation do not pervert the undcniable scientliflic

truth.

Frederick T. Zuglbe, Ph.D.,, M.D. 3
Chief Hedlcal Examlner
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T0: Commission on the. Quallty of Care for the Hentally Disabled,
Hental Hyglene Hedical Review Board

FROM:  Chief Medlcal Examiner
Rockland County, New York
0l

TOPIC:  Psychiatric and/or Sedative Drug Related Deaths

The assoclation of sudden deaths and other forms of adverse reactions with
‘psychiatric and/or sedatlve drugs, particularly in young psychiatrlc patients,
is of great concern to both the clinician and the patlent's famlly, As | pre-
viously indicated, during the same time perlod, 110 cases were accepted for
autopsy from the Rockland Psychlatric Center and 393 cases from Letchworth Vill-
age Developmental Center. We found that over 30% of these deaths were ascrlibed
to pulmonary asplratlion as compared to about 2% in medlical examiner cases accepted
for autopsy outslde these Institutions. 1 also had indfcated that the only common
denominator that was apparent In the igstiTution cases was the use of the psychia-
tric and/or sedative drugs. Moreover, there were a number of patients who died
from diseases, such as: bronchopneumonia, lobar pneumonla, perltonltis due to
vlscus perforation, etc. where there were no reported complalnts of the usual
symptoms and they were elther found dead or discovered In a terminal state.
Moore and Book (BD) have Indlcated that extrapolation of their data and the
various reports in the medical llterature regarding psychotropic and/or sedative
" Telated deaths suggest that many unrecognized or unreported deaths have occurred
in psychlatric hospltals. The jolnt statement of Or. Prevost, Commissioner of’
hental Hygiene and Mr. Coughtin, 111, Commlissloner ot Mental Retardation, on
July 17, 1978, said, "Or. Zuglbe has not brought any suspliclons regarding drugs
‘as a contrlbuting factor in patient's deaths to the attentlon of the facillty
directors or other approprlate agencles." €Ergo the press picked thls statement
up and requested the reason why they were not reported. My answer to this in
my press release was "]t is important to note there should be no medical need
to reporp these findlngs since the effects of tranqulllzers and sedatlve drugs
as indicated above are well known to medica) professlonals, particularly
psychiatrists." In order that there be np misunderstanding that this is a
glaringly ostensible fact, | am submlitting the following critical review to
refresh the memorles of all those professionals who appeared astonlished by my
statements and to lighten the load of the Mental Hyglene Medical Review Board in
thls Investlgation and In their future Investigations oealing with psychiatric
drug deaths. It should also be recalled, at this time, that every time a geath
occurs in these Institutions, a death certificare Is issved directly to them since
these facllities are unlque In that they serve as thelr own reglstrars where they
maintain their own death certlficates and Issve their own burial permits. The vast
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literature from the prestigeous psychliatric and medical journals have been
critlcally reviewed and the signlficant blbliography afforded at the end of

this review SVEPRESS 1vpd oc ﬁ\sz f&,ﬁﬂzy A
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The high percentage of asplration deaths at both Institutions related in my
statement and attributed to the use of psychlatric and/or sedatlve drugs is
well documented in the llterature. W. Spltz, (123), Chlef Medlical Examiner
of Detrolt, relates In one of the most prestlgeous reference books of
medlco-legal lnvestlgaticns of death as follows: "'Food aspiration followlng
suppresslon of the gag reflex by tranqulltizing drugs ls a common phenomenon
Tn mental institutions.” HMilier and Chinoy (76) in thelr sclentific
exnibit at the Amerlcah Psychlatric Assoclatton's 123rd annual meetlng on
the effects of tranqullizers on the gag reflex, revealed that asphyxlal

" deaths had a 10 fold lrcrease In hospltallzed patlents recelving tranquillzers.

—

—=
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They reported an absence of the gag retlex in 50.3% of psychiatric patients as
compared to a control populatlon and further showed that 15% of the patlients
receiving tranqulllzers had no prior Illness. There were 2.73 deaths per
thousand In 1936-1945, verses 25.7 per thousand from 1956-1965. Pharmaceutlical
company package Instructions reveals informatlon as to adverse effects of their
products. For example, the Thorazlne package Instructions relate, 'because

Tho e can suppress the cough reflex, aspiration of vomltus Is poss r-Pabi

Many of the sudden phenothiazlne deaths due to asphyxla have been attributed
to the result of a dlminished degl@itive-resplratocy reflex {B0). Lleetsma and
Koenig (64} Indicated the real éntity of sudden death caused by phenothlazines
and divided these deaths Into those with asplratlon and rapld asphyxia and those
with sudden cessatlon of cardlovascular competence on an arrhythmogenic or
hypotensive basis or both. Plachta (87) reported seven cases of psychliatric
patlents on phenothiazlnes who dled of aspiration and revlewed the llterature

in this regard suggesting several mechanlsms, which will be referred to later.
The 1lterature survey at the Assoclation for Research In Nervous and Mental
Disease revealed that of 19 deaths, b were attributed to aspiration (9%).

Farber (30A) attributed his report of aspiratlon to fallur of the cough reflex
and Jeune {56) specifically warned of the dangers of deglUltlve reflex suppress-
ion by chlorpromazine in Infants. Holllster (50) attributed his case to glottal
spasm for aspiratlon. . T
—— ]

RELATIONSHIP OF SEIZURES TO ASPIRATION ‘ -

15_]5 important to remember at thls point as Indlcated by Wardetl (114) that
mentally deflcient patlents do not choke on food any more frequently thap do
norm ndividuals. Horeover, In non-medicated eplleptic patlents, a convulsiye
elzure associated wlth regurgltatlon of qastric contents rarely 1s fatal

“Pecause the cough reflex remalns functignal (BO). 1t cannot be too strongly
Sirecsed that whén evaluatling the etiologlcal basls for aspiration deaths, that

one not be misiead because of the presence of seizure-11ke activity, 1t would
5e untenable to attribute the etiologlc basls of the asplration to a "selzure"

slnce both the literature and pharmaceutical manufacturers report that these
asﬁDSB 1591

drugs may eltuer cause selzures or tower the selzure threshold {24, 1
hlorpromazlne lowers

65,66,67,75,9!,97,!09,]1&). Klerman (59) reports .that ¢
the selzure threshold. Glacotomo and Lassenfus (41) rcported eplleptic flts In

-———*—thfes of their patlents under chlorpromazine who had no history of previous

>

seizures. HMerlls (75) reported a case of convulslons produced Immediately after
an Injectlon of chlorpromazine. Lomas, et al {67) Schllcter, et al (87) and’
Liddell and Retterstol (65) also reported cases of eplleptic selzures taking

psychotroplc drug therapy. Zlotlow and Paganinl (120) concluded that
W ' A

===
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chiorpromazire may be epileptogenic ¢n suiwe brain damaged patients. Wardell (114)
retated that aspiration In a paqlcnt as o complication of o grand mal seizure is
not a rare phenomenon and it is his opinicn that the patient did nct bhave a selzure
but a fallure of the cough reflex as well as the alr-passageway defenses so that
the response to the aspiration of food into the lungs was lneffectlve. Holllister
(50,51) reported ''the most loglcal possibility Is that these drugs {reserpine or
rawolfia alkalolds, chlorpromazine or other phenothlazine derlivatlives) may induce
selzures.” He also addas that ''the roral seems to be: the risk of rising tran-
qullizing drugs In brain damaged patients are those with known selzures. Thls
Increased risk should be measured against the potentlal beneflts trom the drug."
Toone and Fenton {111) reported that in brain damaged patlents on phenothiazine,
the selzures occurred at a substantlaily lower drug dosage than those showing no
evidence ot brain damage. Selzures as a side eftect of antlpsychotic drugs which
include representative antlpsychotlic drugs from the phenothiazine, butyrophenone,
thioxanthene, dibenzoxazepine and dihydrindolone groups were reported by Honlgfleld
and Howard (53) and the incidence graded rrom frequent to rare. Frequent was
interpreted as expected in Ju-20% ot patients treated and rare, 1-5%. Pharmaceutical
package Instructions also list seizures as an_adverse eftect. S
. e .

:djis’ MECHANISH Or ASPIRATIUN BY PSYCHIATRIC AND/OR SEDATIVE DRUGS

The mechanism of action of how these drugé cause aspiration has been investigated.

The most notable of the reported mechanisms have been that proposed by Plachta {87)
siopathogenesis involves a tranquilizing effect on the

who 1ndicates that the_ghz path
central nervous system which affects the gastric_reflex mechanism which prevents

.EE??7§§§§§BSEEEI refTG;ﬁE2gﬁg:iigghﬁﬂzﬂﬂggi_iﬁfluf and -subsequent interference
7RTF"YF§—56?E§T-ETTT§Fx_mec —S7<m 1n the respiratory tract area. lhe normal gag
sro~deqgiyitive retlexes are also depressed as previously indicated? =
T e — -
Another mechanism that deserves further elucidation 1n the etiology of aspiration.
is whether the drug flrst causes cardiotoxiclty resulting In tachyarrhythmias
conducive to aspiratlon since cardlotoxlc effects of the drugs have been Implicated
in a large number of reports where they have caused sudden deaths. This topic will

now be discussed In detall.

Cardiotoxic Effects of Psychlatric Drugs

The most signiticant findings of recent years ls the increasing evidence that
serjous cardlac complications, including death can occur after treatment with
the psychotropic drugs including the phenothiazlnes and antidepressants In
therapeutic doses. Lithium has also been implicated. The first association
of cardiac complications of psychiatrlic drugs s credited to Kristiansen (62)
who reported the assoclation of death with imlpramine. Kelly, et -al (58) is
credited with the - first report of cardiotoxlc fatalltles associated with pheno-
thiazine therapy. In this paper, he reported two fatallitles and striking T wave

r changes with heart tlock and ventricular tachycardla in 28 patients on thoridazine

(Mellaril). Subsequently, many papers confirming these cardiotoxic complications
appﬂared (f,Z,)O,Il,IS,]6.18,19,22,23,25,26,27,28,35,36,h0,h2,k5,52,53,5h,55,57,
62,5&,68,69,70,71,72,78,79,8h,88,89,96,98,95,100,101;\,10&,105,107,113). A
hospital based study by Molr, et al (78) had confirmed the cardlotoxic effect of
tricyclic antidepressants. HNoreover, In a recent study Fowler, et al 136)
demonstrated in 8 patlents, that major and fatal ventricular arrhythmias can
young patients wlthout heart disease that are on therapeutic doses of

=

-

occur In

|
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psychotropic drugs. Thortdazine {Hellaril) was responslible for S cases of
ventricular tachycardla, amitriptyllne {Elavil) and nortryptyline {Aventyl)

each caused left bundle branch blbck In one patient -and supraventricular -
tachycardla developed In one patient on chlorpromazine (Thorazine). '

. MECHANISMS OF CARDIOTOXICITY BY PSYCHIATRIC DRUGS ...

L

E!eg;rocard]qgigphlc changes assoclated with phenothiazlne, partlchtarly
thoridazine Include [Gversion, flattening, bifed conflguration and widenlng
of the T wave, prolongation of QT, ST depression, PR prolongation, ventricular
tachycardia, supraventricula(;;gqhxggrdla, ventricular flbrillation, heart
block, bundle branch block, atrlal tachycardla and extrasystoles. Alexander

was of the oplnion that cardlac toxiclty from phenothiazine and tricycllic
antidepressants Is not reversible and may cause damage to the heart that Is
serlous and permanent. The demonstratlon of acld mucopolysaccharides In the
arterioles and degenerating‘myocardlaT muscle reported by Richardson, et al
(93) was suggested as the basls for the EKG changes In patients on phenothlazlnes
Phenothlazlines appear to exert their effects similar to that ot cardlac drugs
such as: quinidine and procalnamlde. There 1s an effect on depolarization and
repolarization, decreased membrane responslveness, Interference with the sodlum
pump and Inhibitlion of the sodium and potassium dependent adenosine trilphosphatas
membrane system (3,&,12,%6,55,85). The fact that the EKG changes were more
marked when taken in an erect posltion (116) may be of more importance when
examined in the light of the known hypotensive effects of phenothiazlnes (35)
which may be fatal by elther causlng Ischemlc changes to the heart or by Inducing
a fatal arrhythmla In a patlent showlng abnormal drug_linduced EKG changes.
There Is no question that all of the effects d1scussed would be much more serious
in individuals with cardlac disease and In elderly people, but there is an -
increasing number of cases In young Individuals with no evidence of heart
disease who are on therapeutic levels of psychlatric drugs. The cardiovascular
effects of the tricyclic antidepressant Includes ventricular tachycardia, AV
conduction defects, supraventrlcular tachycardla, ventrlcular tachycardla,
asystole and T and ST changes, prolongation of the HV Interval on HIS bundle
electrograms and alteration of terminal phases of the QRS-T complex. The
mechanism of actlon of the EKG changes with these tricyclic antidepressants
o atEributed to antschollnergld‘ETBckadc'e@@ZEIIErations in the potassiu

e N ¢ X

as bee

Tofomembrane balance (75,85). The g¥ggtensife effect of tricycllics is also
NTmportant (81). Cautlon must be exercised aiso In the pedlatric use of tricyclic

antidepressants which 1s used qulite commonly 1n enuresls and in the treatment of
' hyperactive children (35,43) since fatalities have been reported In chlldren.

PNEUMONIA AND PERITONITIS

The next topic that Is In need of further clarification Includes those patients
-that we indicated were elther found dead or discovered in a termlnal stage of
topsy revealed the cause of death to be due to pneumonia,
peritonitis due to a ruptured viscus, etc., since there were no reports of
complaints of the usual symptoms associated wlth these dlseases. Three deaths
were reported where autopsy revealed bronchopneumonla and In the same papers,
four addltional cases of extenslve bronchopneumonta were Investlgated where the
patlents ald not die. These patlents did not chow the usual premonitory signs
and symptoms and In this regard, the author relates '"these patients did not react
to their illness In the manner we would have expected and the only new factor

disease and where av

e

1/
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n the clinlcal pleture was the tranquillzing agent. We
thise agents may produce masklng of both sub-
ous ilyness and the characteristic
fon. Further, the question can
1flc effect on the respiratory
ja and posslibly dlminishlng the

blocklng the airway," {(114). There appears

11ttle doubt that the pneumonias In many cases is the result of minor drug
ipduced aspiratlons In which the patient survives only to slowly develop
pneumonta. Zlotlow and Paganini (120) refers to a "'masked fit". Kline, et al
(60) and Kllne (61) CBUti?“-that.EE£iE2é3,22.iE3ELEl?§,EQ§,EEEEJEE§_LEEE£ElEF'
%g1?;2L9m25lEs_;2EE2L:;2?é%ZE%;5,12435§1953:9955E§§3»—y' Reinert and Hermann
31) could not ully explaln the pu onary findings in 5 deaths at autopsy
which showed 2 striking simllarity |n the behavler of the patient as well as
an Indlcation of autonomic Instablllty and suggested that particularly during
he drugs may be related to the

sleep, depression of sutonomlc regulation by t
Cases of bronchopneumonla have been reported followlng usage of
The pathogenetic mechanlism

we are aware 1
tion of whether
f Intercurrent infecty

s a temperature elevat
y have a spec
nt of pneumon

which
ratse the ques
jectlive complaints o
comatlc responses such a
be ralsed whether these agents md
s conduclve to the developme

proces
defensive alarm reaction to

usual

v —

deaths.

major tranquilizers such as haloperldol (Haldol).

Is reported 3s follows: 'lethergy and decrease sensation to thlrst due to
central inh!bitlon may lead to dehydratlon, hemoconcentration and reduced

ilation.”

o e e
- —

pulmonary vent
1 and pneumonla cases, where

m ruptured visc
soclated with the

f the usual symptoms as
the basls of alteration of paln perception,
1 hospltallzed patien r paln control,
drugs but because they -
In paln makes some
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e of complaint ©
be explalned on
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jc effect with analgesic
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of pain interpretation.
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GTHER ADVERSE EFFECTS Of PSYCHIATRIC DRUGS
g of other adverse erfects reported but { will 1imlt
tinent ltems In this regard. A study comparing the
1952-1955, with the tranqulllzer per lod 1956-1959
sulcide had been on tranquillzers

{54), and spccuiated that In some patients the "ucld interval® resulting from

the drug therapy may be Inductlve t? su;clde. This study was supported by ’
121). .

' - !

the report of Belsser & Blanchette
/ m
g th dystonlas, akathlsla_ and Parkinsonlsm i
"3 pr———d - MERESERS .
lew will not .

The extrap;ramlda! effects Includln
dverse eftects encountered. A [lterature rev
ystonlas Involving the

E%W
e discussed ak this time except to relate that cases of d
j3232s_22EM;b%gg5_Eiéililﬁﬁf%ﬁffﬂL135551£9 and may be an SddTtional basis for ]
A.aspxration. =Tdlve dyskinesla which f?’FEVéf§1ETE'TE'E_E??SEEH‘EBEETTEEYTOﬁ"‘
St the psychotropic drugs. Swett (109) found adverse reactlons In 31.9% {150 '
psychlatric patlents) to chlorpromaz ine during monitorling and 6% (3 patients)
were conslidered 11fe threatenlng. Autonomlc effects which include blurred
vision, constipation, dlarrhea, dlzzlness, dry mouth, retrograde e}aculation,
falntness, nasal congestlon, nausea, orthostatlc hypotension, etc.rare well
known. MHoreover, ine effects Include galactorrhea, gynecomast!a and )
reactions Include agranulocytosls which may be

menstrual changes.
tatal and hepatitls. d lens and corneal opacitlies are also

n extenslve catalo
to some of the per

i1lzer period from
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- relatively common. The tricycllc antidepressants Include those relating to the
central nervous system such as:.tremors, dysarthrla, ataxla, vlsual hallucin-
atlons, etc. and those affecting the autonomle nervous system such as: cardlac
palpltations, tachycardia, sweatlng, urinary retentlon and hypotenslion. Lithlum
has been shown to produce fatalltles and the effects vary from flne tremors to
gastrointestlinal disturbances such as: dlarrhea and vomlting, muscle twltching,:
coarse tremors, drowslness, hyperactlve reflexes, neurologlcaf slgns Impalred ’
_consclousness, confuslon, stupor, dIfficulty speaklng and selzures té coma and
death {53). A marked contralndlcation to the use of lthlum 1s kldney or
cardlovascular dlsease and medlcal condltions which requlre low salt dletary

reglmens {19A, 53, 101). :

RECOMMENDATIONS

1he followlng recommendations are hereln belng reported In an attempt to reduce
the number of traglc complications and adverse reactions that appear to be

Increasing.

(:E) Thsf$£22;§grafmgggi£§1!OQ_gygg_bg_égydted vigoroysly and methods of preventlon
> ins tuted. Slince cllnlcal studles Indicate that excessive and large amounts
o?=?553_{7199er5 reflux of food initlating the aspiratlon mechanism by lts

action on the muscularts controlling the gastric mucosa rosette, there Is need
to place patlents recelving psychotropic and/or sedatlve therapy on_freguent
smal[_fsfgiﬂgs to abort reflux. Plachta (87) recommends the applicatlon-of
pressure recordTﬁE"TEEﬁETﬁues and manometrlc methods which are used In the
evaluatlon of esophageal pHncter Incompetence to be used to evaluate pre-
disposition to esophagogastrlc Incompetence during tranqulilizer therapy.

(::g;rfLi§iglglggglgg_gfdg§xchjatnl£+dnna_ﬁfgg§mgpt. primarlly In braln damaged and
epileptic patients In view of the effect of thes& drugs in lowering the selzure
~¢hresFold and by thelr direct eftects of Inducing selzures Is of paramount

The Increased rlsk of using the drug must be measured agalnst the

Importance. :
potential beneflts. Moreover, the use of the psychotroplc drugs In mentall
retarded patlents should be restricted to specltlc cases such as "those 7ith

self destructive téndencles. -
i —— .

Moreover, the Implementation of more tralned ancll\a(xggersohnel and the traln-
ersonnel Is a sine qua non since the ancl11ary personnel are In

2 ing of exlsting p
daiTy direct contact with the patients and supervise thelr actlvitles. Thls -
tralning should Include, early detectlon and reporting adverse drug reactlons,
technlques in flrst ald such as the Helmlich procedure, how to supervise eating
activitles, etc. the use of thorougn medlcal histories, frequent complete
physical examinations, both at Initlal contact and perlodically by physicians.
MonltorIng procedures by ancillary personnel such as: perfodlc lab tests, check-
Ing dally for early signs of adverse reactlons, temperatures, recording changes
In behavlor, blood pressure, etc. may detect those Indlviduals with varlous
diseases such as pneumonla, perltonitis, hepatltls, agranulocytosls, and tardlve
dysklnesla and other adverse reactlons, This may be partlcularly effectlve
where the patlent does not manifest the usval dlsease related complalnts.
Remedlal treatment can then be Inltlated Immediately.

There Is &dlso a need to indlviduallze drug therapy today In conslidering the
aluatlon and study of that patleat in relation to hls physical and

complete ev
mental drug Interactions, varlations In drug metabollsm,
- <

mental condition,
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presence or absence of braln damage, sclzure activity, etc. Moreover, the use
of polypharmacy or comblnation therapy has been shown to be an addltf&FET_?TQk
~ro—aspiration and cardlac toxIclty and (s use should be welghed against the .
o s7 Every patient on chronlc drug therapy with phenothlazlnes,
tricycllc antldepressants and 11thlum must have a cardiologlcal evaluatlion,
Including electrocardlogram and chest x-ray at the onset of therzpy and at
intervals not to exceed 6 months. An electrocardlogram and crash cart should
be placed In or near psychlatric patient quarters. It Is signlficant to note
that deSautels, et a) (25) reports that bigeminal arrhythmlas due to atrlal
premature beats appear before the development of ventrlcular tachycardla. Pre-
medication blood levels of sodium, potassium and magneslum should be taken and
followed periodically. The consideration of possible dlscontlnuance or lowering
. of the dosage of the medicatlon must be entertalned It EKG or other changes
become manifested. 1t must be understood that after phenothlazlne therapy, the
drug Js highiy bound to plasma proteln and since they are principally excreted
via tne billary system, attempts at hemodialysis and perltoneal dfalysis have
been unsuccessful. Also in the presence of cardlac toxiclty, one must control
the cardiovascular complications untll excretion of the drug is effected by the
body (36). If ventricular tachycardla or other tachyarrhythmlas develop,
lidocaine Is recommended as the drug of cholce sInce 1t Increased the conduction
veloclty of the myocardlum. If |1docaine Is ineffective, a temporary transvenous
blpolar pacemaker should be inserted. QulinlidIne or procalnamide should not be
used as they may aggravate the problem since they have a simllar actlon to the
phenothlazines. In general, treatment of cardiotoxlclty caused by the trjcyclic
antidepressants are simllar to that ot phenothlazine, except that physostigmine
(17,30,36,37,106) should be tried before Inserting a pdcemaker. Hypotenslon
and other cardiovascular complications usually respond when the ventricular.
arrhythmia Is corrected. {f this is Ineffective, pressor agents and fluld
replacements with Swan-Ganz catheter control ts necessary. In general, for the
other adverse effects, careful monltoring by medlical and anclillary personnel 1Is
important. In agranulocytosls, which may cause death, one may find the following
prellminary slgns; sore throat, severe fatigue, fever, etc. 1f this Is reported
immedlately and a medical examination and blood test are done, a fatallty may be
averted. This factor should be stressed to personnel regardless ‘of the number of -
false negatlves that may occur, Patlents on lithium must be watched extra
cautlously for neurologlcal symptoms so that they may be reported Immediately
to avold a crlsis. Surveillance of patlents for early signs of scleral lcterus,
" anorexia and malalse may indlcate hepatic Involvement. Dystonias involving the
neck muscles must be treated with antiparklnson agents or antlhlstamines to avert
fatalitles. Slnce tardive dyskinesla 1s lrreversible and resistant to treatment,
it is necessary that close survelllance for early signs be inltlated. The
presence of flne vermlcular movements of the tongue have been reported to heraid
tardlve dyskinesla and appears reversible at this stage.

CONCLUSION

torlal relates that '"the total needs of Institutionalized
patlents are readlly overlooked and it would not be surprising that manltestatlons
of drug toxicity might go unrecognlzed". Thls is what we want 1o prevent.
Since the adverse effects of psycnlatric and/or sedatlve drugs occurs in the
therapeutic range then the current practlce ot treating Instltutionalized residents
with psychiatric drugs, etc. must be re-evaluated. In thls regard, critical

" recommendatlons for monlitoring must be Initlated, more trained personnel
implemented and current personnel glven additional tralning as Indicated above.

Alexander (i) In an edl

\

¢
(9]



-8-

Therefore, 1t behooves the State Mental Health Department to re-evaluate thelr
current programs with the above recommendations tn mind.

| belleve that a quotatlon from Dr.-Michael Baden, Chief Medlcal Examlner of .~
New York Clty sums up the duty of the Kedlcal Examiner, ''Because it s In the
medlcal examlner that soclety has Invested the excluslve opportunlty of lInvestl-
gating unnatural deaths, he has had to assume responslblllty for translatlng
these deaths into terms that can be used for prevention'......."Ta the extent
that death occurs because postmortem data are not applled to the premortem
condition, to that extent do medlcal examiners fall thelr medical obllgatlon;
to the extent that unnatural causes of death remain unrecognlzed as problems
deserving of attention by the medlcal community, to that extent do medlcal
examlners fail thelr sclentiflc obligations; to the extent that persons dle
because medlcal examiners remaln uninvolved In those community areas that only
they are permitted to lnvestigate, to that extent do they fall thelr public
trust. The self-Interests of forensic pathology Itself demand Involvement In

the areas of communlty pathology". (122)

Sincerely yours,

Frederick T. Zuglbe, Ph.D., H.D.
Chief Medical Examiner .

FT2/ms

&ﬁ1’
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